ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
March 30, 2005
8:36 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas, Co-Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative John Harris
Representative Mary Kapsner

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 230
"An Act authorizing the making of |loans for upgrade of
comercial fishing tender vessels and gear."

- MOVED HB 230 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 230

SHORT TITLE: LOANS FOR COMMERCI AL FI SH NG TENDERS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOVAS

03/ 22/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 22/ 05 (H) FSH, RES
03/ 30/ 05 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

| AN FI SK, Staff

to Representative Bill Thomas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 230 on behal f of
Representati ve Thomas, sponsor.

JASON KOONTZ
Honmer, Al aska

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- March 30, 2005



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 230.

JERRY McCUNE
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 230.

KELLEY SHARP, Lendi ng Branch Manager

Di vision of Investnents

Al aska  Depart nent of Conmer ce, Communi ty, and Econom c
Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB 230.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR BILL THOVMAS called the House Special Commttee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 8:36:51 AM Represent ati ves
LeDoux, Thonmas, W /I son, Salnon, and Elkins were present at the
call to order

HB 230- LOANS FOR COMVERCI AL FI SHI NG TENDERS

CO CHAI R THOVAS announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 230, "An Act authorizing the maki ng of | oans
for upgrade of commercial fishing tender vessels and gear."

8:37:10 AM

| AN FISK, Staff to Representative Bill Thonas, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, presented HB 230 on behalf of Representative
Thomas, sponsor. He noted that this bill is a conpanion bill to

SB 145, sponsored by Senator Bert Stedman, regarding the
Commer ci al Fi shing Revol ving Loan Fund. He explained that this
loan fund is managed by the D vision of Investnents in the
Al aska  Depart nent of Commer ce, Comuni ty, and Econom c
Devel opnent . The loans are given to individual fishernen and
communities for vessels, gear, limted entry permts, individual
fishing quotas (IFQ), and product quality inprovenent. He
clarified that product quality inprovenent |oans are for
[upgrading or purchasing] freezing systenms, Refrigerated Sea
Water (RSW systens, and any other equipnent that can be used to
inprove the quality of the fish. Currently, he said, "Tenders,
who are not considered fishernmen specifically in law, are not
eligible for these |oans. So this bill sinmply makes them
eligible. " He pointed out that in addition to individual
tenders, conpanies would also be eligible for the | oans under HB
230.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- March 30, 2005



8:39:47 AM

JASON KOONTZ testified as a commercial fisherman and a tender
owner in support of HB 230. He commented that currently it is
very difficult for tender operators to obtains |oans. He stated
that he has used the Commercial Fishing Revolving Loan Fund to
obtain fishing permts and IFQ, and he feels that it is a great
program He opined that the $300,000 loan limt is fairly |ow
for nost tenders; nost tenders sell for about $350, 000- $400, 000.

8:41:38 AM

JERRY MCCUNE testified in support of HB 230. He stated that the
bill was designed so that tendermen could get a $300,000 loan to
upgrade an existing vessel. He commented, "There's a lot of
[ Alaska] residents that are just tendernen; they don't do
anything else but tender all around the state all year. So |
think this [bill] wll be a great thing to be able to

upgrade their existing vessels."
8:42:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if $300,000 would be a |arge enough
| oan for a tendernan.

MR. McCUNE replied that it is set in regulation that there is a
$300, 000 loan cap for upgrades on existing vessels. He said
"You can't buy a vessel with $300, 000."

8:44: 39 AM

CO CHAIR LEDOUX asked if a commrercial fisherman can purchase a
fishing vessel under this |oan.

MR. McCUNE responded negatively, and pointed out that [the bill]
says that the loan is for existing vessels.

CO- CHAIR LEDOUX clarified that the tenders can only get |oans
for upgrades, but conmented, "It Jlooks like ... you could
actually purchase a fishing vessel." She asked what the
rationale was for limting the |loan for upgrade use rather than
for tender vessel purchase.

MR. MCUNE replied that the tendernmen he spoke wth wanted to
have access to the loan in order to upgrade their vessels, and,

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- March 30, 2005



he said, "Nobody talked to nme about purchasing a vessel, and
that woul d take a whole | ot nore noney."

8:46:41 AM

COCHAIR LEDQUX reiterated that wunder the original statute,
there is a $300,000 cap. She asked if an amendnent could be
made to HB 230 to allow for the purchase of a tender as |ong as
it remains under the $300, 000 cap.

MR. McCUNE stated that if a person has a limted entry permt,
he/she is eligible for any category of the |oan. However, he
said, "A lot of tendernen that | talk to don't own pernits

or have any way to get into the |loan program so what we did was
create this category where they could cone in and ... upgrade
their vessels...."

COCHAIR THOMAS, in response to Co-Chair LeDoux's question
replied, "If you have the collateral, that's the main thing.

I f you have collateral you can buy a vessel.... | don't think
there's restrictions if you can afford to buy a vessel."

8:48: 32 AM

KELLEY SHARP, Lending Branch Manager, Division of I|nvestnents
Al aska  Depart nent of Commer ce, Communi ty, and Economic
Devel opnent , clarified that the |oan [imt under [ AS

16.10.310(a)(1)(B)], for the purchase of vessels, is currently
$100, 000, and the loan limt under [AS 16.10.310(a)(1)(A], for
product quality inprovenents to a vessel, is $300, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON remarked that on page 2, lines 3-4, of the
bill, there is reference to, "for the repair, restoration, or
upgr adi ng of existing vessels".

CO CHAIR LEDOUX pointed out that on page 2, line 5, the bil
al so states that the |loans are for the "purchase of vessels".

MR. SHARP reiterated that [subparagraph (B) on page 2, lines 3-
7] is the part that authorizes the purchase of vessels and is
capped at $100, 000.

8: 50: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked where the | oan noney ori gi nates.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- March 30, 2005



MR SHARP replied that the nmoney would come out of the
Commerci al Fishing Revol ving Loan Fund. He noted that the fund
is conpletely self-supporting, and there haven't been any
general fund appropriations to the fund since 1985.

8:51: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON poi nted out, "Last year we took noney from
the fund and put it in the general fund, and | was concerned
that they were going to be taking too nuch and it would deplete
the fund. ... Did they do that again this year?"

MR. SHARP responded that there was about $2 mllion taken out
| ast year, but he does not know what the plan is for this year
He noted, "At sonme point, if that continues, it wll obviously
eat into the fund. | certainly wouldn't characterize that as
being right around the corner, but eventually that would becone
an issue."

MR. MCUNE comented that he hadn't seen any plans for [the
removal of funds from the Conmercial Fishing Revolving Loan
Fund] this year. He stated, "This fund paid for itself a |ong
time ago, and we want to nake sure there's enough existing noney
in there for fishermen to be able to use it."

8:52:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON noved to report HB 230 out of committee
wi th individual recomendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HB 230 was reported from the
House Special Commttee on Fisheries.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 8:52:39
AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- March 30, 2005



